
 
LEMOORE PLANNING COMMISSION 

Regular Meeting 
AGENDA 

Lemoore Council Chambers 
429 ‘C’ Street 

 
July 14, 2014  

7:00 p.m. 
 
 
1. Pledge of Allegiance and Roll Call  

2. Public Comments and Inquiries 
If you wish to comment on an item, which is not on the agenda, you may do so under "Public Comment.”  In order 
to allow time for all public comments, each individual’s comments are limited to five minutes.  When addressing the 
Commission, you are requested to come forward to the speaker's microphone, state your name and address, and 
then proceed with your presentation. 

3. Approval – Minutes – Regular Meeting June 9, 2014 

4. Public Hearing – Report and Recommendation to Approve Resolution No. 2014-01 – Recommending 
Approval of Conditional Use Permit 2014-01 to Allow a Microbrewery – Bird Street Brewery, Inc. – 
238 “C” Street –  No Sales at Production Site  

5. Planning Director’s Report  

6. Commission’s Report and Request for Information  

7. Adjournment 

Tentative Future Items 
 
July 28th  
- Public Hearing – Report and Recommendation to Approve Resolution No. – Approval of Conditional Use Permit 2014-02 – Framework Racing 
Establishing a BMX Track 
-Approval – Report and Recommendation to Approve Resolution No.__ – Recommending Approval of Landscape Ordinance  
 
August 11th  
-Public Hearing – Report and Recommendation to Approve Resolution No. __ – Recommending  Approval of Zone Change 2014-01and General 
Plan Amendment 2014-01 – Matthew and Jeffrey Kemper - 847 and 849 Champion Street    
 
Notice of ADA Compliance:  If you or anyone in your party needs reasonable accommodation to attend, 
or participate in, any City Council Meeting, please make arrangements by contacting City Hall at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting.  They can be reached by calling 924-6700, or by mail at 119 Fox Street, 
Lemoore, CA  93245. 
 

Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the Planning Commission regarding any item on this 
agenda will be made available for public inspection at the City Clerk’s Counter at City Hall located at 119 
Fox Street, Lemoore, CA during normal business hours.  In addition, most documents will be posted on 
the City’s website at www.lemoore.com. 
 
 

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING 
 

 I, Kristie Baley, Planning Commission Secretary, do hereby declare that the foregoing Agenda for the 
Lemoore Planning Commission Regular Meeting of Monday, July 14, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. was posted on 
the outside bulletin board located at City Hall, 119 Fox Street in accordance with applicable legal 
requirements.  Dated this 11th day of July 2014. 

                 //s//     
      Kristie Baley, Commission Secretary  



                                        
WELCOME TO YOUR LEMOORE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

 

 

Whether you are attending this meeting because of general interest, or because a particular item of special interest is to be 
reviewed, your presence is an important means of helping to insure an informed public and responsible City Government. 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
The Planning Commission has been established to advise the City Council in planning and zoning matters. 
 

REGULAR PLANNING COMMISSION MEETINGS 
Meetings are held at 7:00 p.m. on Second and Fourth Monday of each month.  Business requiring Commission action is listed on 
the Planning Commission Meeting Agenda (blue-colored).  An agenda is prepared for each Planning Commission Meeting.  In 
compliance with the State open meeting laws (Brown Act), only those items on the agenda may be acted upon by the Planning 
Commission.  
 

CONDUCT AT PUBLIC MEETINGS 
Your courtesy is requested to help our meeting run smoothly.  If you’ll be kind enough to follow these simple rules, we can make the 
best possible use of time.  Please silence all electronic devices.  Please refrain from public displays or outbursts such as unsolicited 
applause, comments, cheering, foul language, or obscenities.  Any disruptive activities that substantially interfere with the ability of 
the City to carry out its meeting or prevents/disrupts others from fully participating in the meeting will not be permitted and offenders 
will be requested to leave the meeting pursuant to Government Code § 54957.9. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS  
At a Planning Commission meeting, those who wish to be heard on matters on the agenda should indicate their desire to speak 
when the item is ready for discussion.  If you wish to comment on an item which is not on the agenda, you may do so under "Public 
Comments".  In order to allow time for all public comments, each individual’s comments are limited to five minutes.  Time shall not 
be shared/loaned from speaker to speaker.  If you wish to request time on an upcoming Planning Commission Agenda to present a 
particular item or matter to the Planning Commission, you may contact the Planning Commission Secretary at any time before 12:00 
noon on the Tuesday immediately preceding the Planning Commission meeting to so request.  If the matter is within the Planning 
Commissions jurisdiction, and the Planning Commission has not taken action or considered the item at a recent meeting, the 
Planning Director may place the item on the Agenda.  When addressing the Planning Commission, you are requested to come 
forward to the speaker's microphone, state your name and address, and then proceed with your presentation. 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION 
Resolution  

A Resolution is a formal written expression of a policy, opinion or desire of the Planning Commission.  It requires only one 
reading and becomes effective on adoption. 

 

Minute Order  
Actions of the Planning Commission recorded only in the Minutes taken in all cases where a formal Resolution is not needed 
or required.  

 

SUGGESTIONS, INQUIRIES OR COMPLAINTS 
While any citizen may speak directly to the Planning Commission concerning suggestions, inquiries or complaints, the Planning 
Director or Department Head responsible for the service or work concerned, can usually provide pertinent information or handle the 
matter without delay if a request is made directly to him or her.  If you are not sure which department to call, or whenever you feel 
the matter has not been properly handled, please contact the office of the Planning Director at 711 W. Cinnamon Drive, telephone  
924-6740.  



 1

           Item 1 
 

Minutes of the  
LEMOORE PLANNING COMMISSION 

June 9, 2014 
 
 

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER: 
 At 7:03 p.m. the meeting was called to order. 
 
ATTENDANCE: 

Vice-Chairman Clement, Commissioners Badasci, Dow, Marvin, Monreal, 
Wynne; City Planner Brandt, Planning Director Wlaschin, Commission       
Secretary Baley 
 

ABSENT: Chairman Garcia, Project Manager Holwell 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 

There was no comment. 
  

MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING MARCH 24, 2014: 
 

It was moved by Commissioner Marvin and seconded by Commissioner  
Badasci to approve the minutes of the Planning Commission Regular Meeting 
of March 24, 2014. 
 
Ayes:  Badasci, Dow, Marvin, Monreal, Wynne, Clement  
Absent:  Garcia     

 
 

DISCUSSION – WATER CONSERVATION AND LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS: 
City Planner Brandt discussed the water conservation plan adopted by the 
City Council in April. 
 
Commissioners commended Council Members and City staff for the proactive 
approach and suggested looking for more ways to save water. 
 
Brandt stated that Quad Knopf is looking for areas in the City Ordinance that 
could increase water conservation. 
 
Planning Director Wlaschin answered questions from the Commissioners. 
 
Wlaschin suggested that the word “required” concerning new subdivision 
landscaping requirements be changed to “option to” in the event the Water 
Table increases long term.  Developers could apply for plants requiring more 
water. 
 
Commissioner Badasci expressed concern for the proposed lack of entry 
landscaping within new developments and asked why new development is 
being allowed if there is no water. 
 



 2

Wlaschin agreed that the growing population is a challenge, but explained 
that residential water use does not generally fluctuate tremendously due to 
the amount of showers being taken, but because of landscaping that is not 
drought tolerant.  He stated that the amount of water needed for industrial 
businesses can be an issue as well. 
 
Wlaschin informed the Commissioners that City Hall is testing lawn product 
that saves water. 
 
Brandt mentioned that the use of fescue would be the biggest change. 
 
Commissioner Clement requested comment concerning current swimming 
pool regulations. 
 
Wlaschin commented and mentioned that restrictions may be necessary for 
new development in the future. 
 
Wlaschin stated that more aggressive action may be necessary year after 
year.  
 

PLANNING DIRECTOR’S REPORT: 
Planning Director Wlaschin reported on several projects: 
 

 Virgil Beard, Commerce LLC – Concrete Phase – 30,000 sq ft. Industrial  
Building – 15 Units – Possibly available in the next two months 
 
GHQ Investments – The Grove Multifamily Residential Project – Highway 41 
and 19th Avenue – Pouring concrete – One year to occupy - Expect to begin 
processing Phase 2 before Phase 1 is complete 
 
Chevron – Citywide Solar Project– City Corporation Yard Parking Lot and Well 
Sites – Progressing 
 
Rodriquez/Marx – Convenience Store – Submitted Grading Plans 
 
Mitch Covington – Tract 908 – Has not submitted Final Map 
 
Framework Racing – Conditional Use Permit application 
 
Bird Street Brewery – Conditional Use Permit application 
 
Inquiry – Zone Change – Multifamily to Mixed Use -  Area of D Street and 
Bush Street - Extension Oleander to D Street 
 
The completion of the 198 Interchange Project is expected to spur more        
interest in the Industrial Park with the increased access. 
 
Wathen Castanos interested in completing several developments that were not 
completed. 
 
KCAG Meeting – June 10, 2014 - Workshop – Public Invited    



 3

B & L Moving And Storage – Zone Change and General Plan Amendment    
applications 

 
COMMISSIONERS REPORT AND REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION: 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 

Commissioner Badasci reported on the Planning Academy she attended in 
March 2014.  She it seemed to be geared for Commissioners with 1 to 3 years 
of experience, but that it was very informative and stated that it was interesting 
to see what is going on in other Cities.  
  

 At 8:23 p.m. the meeting adjourned. 
 

 
Approved the 14th day of July 2014. 
 
Due to technical difficulties, audio recording is not available. 
 
 
 

              
        Jeff Garcia, Chairman 
Attest: 
 
 
 

       
Kristie Baley, Commission Secretary 
 



“In God We Trust”  Page 1 
 

Mayor                    
William Siegel              

Mayor Pro Tem            
Lois Wynne 

 

Public Works/ Planning 

711 W. Cinnamon Drive 
Lemoore CA  93245 

Phone (559) 924-6704 
FAX (559) 924-6708 

Council Members 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 

City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

Staff Report 
 

ITEM   2   
 

 

To:      Lemoore Planning Commission 

From:    Michael S. Hernandez, Assistant Planner; Steve Brandt, City Planner 

Subject:  Public Hearing to consider CUP No. 2014‐01:  a request to establish a Micro‐

Brewery with sales in an adjacent restaurant.  The site is located at 238 C Street, 

Suites J and K.2 

 

Recommended Action   

City staff recommends that the Planning Commission conduct a public hearing to take 

testimony regarding CUP No. 2014‐01.  Following the public hearing, staff recommends that the 

Planning Commission consider the testimony given and approve the applicant’s proposal with 

conditions. 

Proposal   

The applicant, Philip Wren, requests a Conditional Use Permit to establish a microbrewery in an 

existing building in Downtown District.  A microbrewery by definition produces a limited 

amount of beer.  Exact definitions vary, but the terms are typically applied to breweries that are much 

smaller than large‐scale corporate breweries and are independently owned.  The existing building is 

312 sq. ft., it is currently vacant, and the applicant is proposing that there will not be any 

structural changes to the building.  There will also be no physical changes to the exterior of the 

building.  The applicant is proposing to brew at the site and sell to an adjacent property, which 

is a restaurant; the restaurant where the beer will be sold (Ocean City Chinese Restaurant) is 

approximately 100 ft. from the microbrewery. 



“In God We Trust”  Page 2 
 

There will be on‐site grain mill that will run sparingly to crush the grains needed to brew the 

beer.  It will run for approx 5 minutes per batch, with 3 batches per week planned.  Other 

equipment consists of water pumps and burners. There will be an exhaust vent installed on the 

boiling side of the brewery.  The boiling wort produces an aroma that is mainly comprised of 

boiling grain and hops.  Besides the applicant, there will be one employee/partner assisting 

with the operation. 

Applicant      Bird Street Brewery, Inc., Philip Wren 

Location      238 C Streets, Suites J & K 

Existing Land Use    Vacant office building (former motel) 

APN        020‐092‐025 

Site Size      312 sq. ft. 

Lot Size      7,210 sq. ft. 

Zoning      DMX‐1 

General Plan    Downtown Mixed Use 

 

Adjacent Land Use, Zone and General Plan Designation 

Direction  Current Use   Zone  General Plan 

North  

Alley,( Lemoore Real Estate, Ocean City 
Chinese Restaurant), and mixed use 
buildings  DMX‐1  Downtown Mixed Use, Core  

South  
Offices (Kings Public Health, First 
Command Principal)  DMX‐3 

Downtown Mixed Use, 
Transitional 

 
 
East 

Parking Lot, mixed use buildings (Eric 
Verheul Physical Therapy, Plain Insane 
Graphics)  DMX‐1  Downtown Mixed Use, Core 

West 
Mixed use buildings(Family Dentist, tattoo 
parlor, hair salon)  DMX‐1  Downtown Mixed Use, Core 

 



“In God We Trust”  Page 3 
 

History 

The existing building was the Old Motel Plaza.  The current uses of adjacent rooms are office 

space. Some suites are currently vacant.   

Zoning/General Plan 

As stated In the City of Lemoore Zoning Ordinance, “DMX‐1, Downtown Mixed Use, core. This 
district comprises the historical center of the downtown. The district is designated for retail, 
commercial, professional office, second story residential, public, and institutional uses. Retail 
and restaurant uses are generally the primary use at the site.”  The microbrewery would be 
consistent with the intent of the Downtown Mixed Use designation in the General Plan. 
 
Typically, microbreweries in downtown settings are established as an element of a 
restaurant/bar.  In this case, the majority of the product will be moved in boxes by handtruck 
across the alleyway to the adjacent restaurant for sale at that location.  No sales will take place 
at the 238 C Street location.  Given the close proximity, Staff views the microbrewery and the 
restaurant as a combined use that is not dissimilar to a microbrewery that produces and serves 
from the same building. 
 

Access and Traffic 
 
C Street would serve as primary access in and out of the property.  Alley access to the proposed 
property is also in place and access from D Street could also be used.  Ingredients and supplies 
will be delivered via UPS/Fed Ex truck or by the applicant’s private vehicle.  Most of the product 
will be handtrucked to the Ocean City Chinese Restaurant. 
 

Environmental Assessment 
 
Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15303, New Small Structures, it has been determined that 
this project is categorically exempt from additional CEQA Processes. 
 

 
Approval Findings 
  
A conditional use permit shall be granted only when the designated approving authority 
determines that the proposed use or activity complies with all of the following findings: 
 
1. The proposed use is consistent with the general plan, any applicable specific plans, and all 

applicable provisions of this title.  The proposed use of the building is consistent with the 
General Plan; the microbrewery would serve as an extension of an existing restaurant. 

 
 



“In God We Trust”  Page 4 
 

2.  The establishment, maintenance, or operation of the use applied for will not, under the 
circumstances of the particular case (location, size, design, and operating characteristics), be 
detrimental to the health, safety, peace, morals, comfort, or general welfare of persons residing 
or working in the neighborhood of such use or to the general welfare of the city.  The proposed 
use will not result in excessive amounts of traffic to the project site.  The proposed structure 
will provide adequate space for its intended use. 
 
3.  The site of the proposed use is physically suitable for the type, density, and intensity of the 
use and related structures being proposed.  The proposed site does provide sufficient parking 
and it is in close proximity to the restaurant that it will be serving.   
 
4.  It will not be contrary to the specific intent clauses, development regulations, or 
performance standards established for the zoning district in which it is located. The 
proposed use and related structures are compatible with other land uses, transportation 
patterns, and service facilities in the vicinity.  The proposed use and related structures are 
compatible with the adjacent service facilities. 

 
Recommended Conditions 
 
Staff recommends the following conditions be applied to the approval of the Conditional Use 
Permit: 
 

1. The operation shall be conducted in accordance with this conditional use permit. Any 
deviations from the approvals shall require an amendment to the prior approvals or 
approval of a new permit or entitlement(s) as determined by the City. 

2. The operation shall be conducted entirely within the building (Suites J &K).  No storage 
of any kind shall occur outside the building. 

3. No sales shall occur at the production site (Suites J & K).   

4. Any expansion beyond Suites J & K of the site shall first require an amendment to this 
conditional use permit. 

5. If the City receives complaints about odor or excessive noise, the applicant shall take 
reasonable and feasible measures to eliminate perceptible odor at the property line 
and/or reduce noise to within City Noise Ordinance standards.  

6. The time limits and potential extensions and expiration of this conditional use permits 
are established per Section 9‐2A‐9 of the City of Lemoore Zoning Ordinance. 

 
   



“In God We Trust”  Page 5 
 

Attachments 
 

 Aerial Photo of Site 
 

 Draft Resolution for Approval 
 

 Exterior Sketch of Building 
 

 Interior Sketch of Building 
 

 Floor Plan 
   



“In God We Trust”  Page 6 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Aerial Photo of Site 
Exhibit 

1 



“In God We Trust” 

RESOLUTION NO. 2014-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE 
APPROVING CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. 2014-01 TO ALLOW A MICROBREWERY 

LOCATED AT 238 C STREET, SUITES J AND K 
 
At a Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Lemoore duly called and held 
on July 14, 2014, at 7:00 p.m. on said day, it was moved by Commission Member 
______________, seconded by Commission Member ____________ and carried that the 
following Resolution be adopted: 
 

WHEREAS, Bird Street Brewery, Inc., represented by Philip Wren, has requested a 
conditional use permit to allow a microbrewery located at 238 C Street, Suites J and K; and 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed building is 312 square feet in size; and 
 

WHEREAS, the zoning on the parcel is DMX-1 (Downtown Mixed Use); and 
 

WHEREAS, the project is categorically exempt from CEQA requirements per the new 
small structures exemption in Section 15303 of the CEQA Guidelines. 
 

WHEREAS, the Lemoore Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing at 
their July 14, 2014, meeting. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of 
Lemoore hereby makes the following findings regarding the proposed conditional use permit: 

 
1. The proposed use is consistent with the General Plan, any applicable specific plans, and 

all applicable provisions of this title.  The proposed use of the building is consistent with 
the General Plan; the microbrewery would serve as an extension of an existing 
restaurant. 
 

2. The establishment, maintenance, or operation of the use applied for will not, under the 
circumstances of the particular case (location, size, design, and operating 
characteristics), be detrimental to the health, safety, peace, morals, comfort, or general 
welfare of persons residing or working in the neighborhood of such use or to the general 
welfare of the city.  The proposed use will not result in excessive amounts of traffic to the 
project site.  The proposed structure will provide adequate space for its intended use. 
 

3. The site of the proposed use is physically suitable for the type, density, and intensity of 
the use and related structures being proposed.  The proposed site does provide 
sufficient parking and it is in close proximity to the restaurant that it will be serving.   
 

4. It will not be contrary to the specific intent clauses, development regulations, or 
performance standards established for the zoning district in which it is located. The 
proposed use and related structures are compatible with other land uses, transportation 
patterns, and service facilities in the vicinity.  The proposed use and related structures 
are compatible with the adjacent service facilities. 
 



“In God We Trust” 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of Lemoore approves 
Conditional Use Permit No. 2014-01, subject to the following conditions:  

1. The operation shall be conducted in accordance with this Conditional Use Permit. Any 
deviations from the approvals shall require an amendment to the prior approvals or 
approval of a new permit or entitlement(s) as determined by the City. 

2. The operation shall be conducted entirely within the building (Suites J &K).  No storage 
of any kind shall occur outside the building. 

3. No sales shall occur at the production site (Suites J & K).   

4. Any expansion beyond Suites J & K of the site shall first require an amendment to this 
Conditional Use Permit. 

5. If the City receives complaints about odor or excessive noise, the applicant shall take 
reasonable and feasible measures to eliminate perceptible odor at the property line 
and/or reduce noise to within City Noise Ordinance standards.  

6. The time limits and potential extensions and expiration of this Conditional Use Permit are 
established per Section 9-2A-9 of the City of Lemoore Zoning Ordinance. 

 
 
 
Passed and adopted at a Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Lemoore 
held on July 14, 2014, by the following votes: 
 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAINING: 
ABSENT: 

APPROVED: 
 
 

      
Jeff Garcia, Chairperson 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Kristie Baley, Commission Secretary 
 








	7-14-14  PC Agenda
	Agenda Back
	Item 1 - Minutes 6-9-14
	Item 2 - Bird Street Brewery CUP staff report and resoluton
	Attachments

